
Community & Economic Development Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:30 PMWednesday, February 9, 2022

1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call of membership

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

22-0076 CEDC Minutes from 1-12-22

CEDC Minutes 1-12-22.pdfAttachments:

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

5. Action Items

22-0077 Request to approve the reallocation of Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) funding from Appleton Housing Authority's 2020PY unspent 

$42,824.66 to Rebuilding Together Fox Valley's 2021PY subaward 

agreement for homeowner rehabilitation

Reallocation of 2020 AHA Funds to RTFV Memo to CEDC 2-9-22.pdf

AHA Reallocation Request 1-4-22.pdf

Amendment to RTFV SubAgreement 1-25-22.pdf

Attachments:

22-0078 Request to approve the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)-CV 

(Coronavirus) Policy as specified in the attached documents

CDBG-CV Policy Approval Memo to CEDC 2-9-22.pdf

DRAFT CDBG-CV Policy 1-28-22.pdf

Attachments:

22-0079 Resolution #2022-01 - Support for Amending the Articles of Organization 

and the By-Laws of East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning 

Commission to modify the Board composition for the Commission

#2022-01_CityofAppletonSupport_ECWRPCResolution.pdf

ECWRPC_ResolutionAmendingArticlesofOrg+Bylaws_Packet.pdf

Attachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 2/4/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20627
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bc77debf-4e36-400b-81c6-3a29665aea53.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20628
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f4e63f15-2d1d-4eba-b61c-af5b1bdf95c5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3941d109-ff0c-4f7c-b1d6-a875d6c229d7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aabe6188-d640-4f65-a452-491ee8accdee.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20629
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=81dece3f-786d-4ba6-87bc-f8dce27570a0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4a087fa2-c26e-453e-8b23-8525995ef007.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20630
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=26b7fb8a-5cc8-4edd-b1f0-b0725693868f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=80438fd5-8979-416c-af56-367e5cf87bee.pdf


February 9, 2022Community & Economic 

Development Committee

Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0084 Request to proceed with the sale of Lot 3 of Northeast Industrial Park Plat 

No. 4 to Tetz, LLC per the terms of the Option to Purchase Agreement with 

Valley Tool, Inc. or its assigns dated August 22, 2019 at a purchase price 

of $53,850 ($37,395.83 per acre)

Valley Tool Exercise Option to Purchase Memo to CEDC 2-9-22.pdf

Request from Valley Tool_Exercise Option to Purchase_Lot 3 NEIP.pdf

Recorded Option to Purchase_COA and Valley Tool_Lot 3 NEIP.pdf

Attachments:

22-0085 The Community and Economic Development Committee may go into 

closed session pursuant to State Statute §19.85(1)(e) for the purpose of 

discussing real estate negotiations regarding the potential sale of Lot 3 of 

the Northeast Industrial Park Plat No. 4 and then reconvene into open 

session

22-0089 Request to amend the Development Agreement with Bela Development 

LLC located at 513 W. College Avenue in Tax Increment Financing District 

No. 12 to provide the Developer until January 1, 2023 to meet the minimum 

$1,700,000 assessed value requirement

Bela DA Extension Memo to CEDC 2-9-22.pdf

Bela Development 513 W College Recorded Dev Agrmt.pdf

Attachments:

22-0091 Request to approve the Offer to Purchase from Farrell Investments, LLC to 

purchase Lot 11 of Southpoint Commerce Park Plat No. 1, consisting of 

approximately 3.25 acres, at a purchase price of $130,000 ($40,000 per 

acre)

Farrell Expansion Offer to Purchase Memo to CEDC 2-9-22.pdf

Farrell Offer to Purchase 2-3-22.pdf

SPCP Deed Restrictions.pdf

Southpoint Commerce Park Map_Feb 2022.pdf

Attachments:

22-0092 The Community and Economic Development Committee may go into 

closed session pursuant to State Statute §19.85(1)(e) for the purpose of 

discussing real estate negotiations regarding the potential sale of Lot 11 of 

the Southpoint Commerce Park Plat No. 1 and then reconvene into open 

session

6. Information Items

22-0090 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) City of Appleton Grants

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 2/4/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20635
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6e88bc0b-7d74-4920-9de9-6e898654c9f0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=84b4d99a-9b68-438b-a90f-1afa3a633d4b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=35b8d10f-751b-4df0-9b45-fccd7874c1b8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20636
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20640
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a8507e9a-907e-484f-ae21-e2448eba2f94.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0a6019d4-a3b4-4e4b-b32c-3114487f4752.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20642
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0f0af1ba-b530-469d-86b9-70c00f2994e5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=70650689-084c-4597-85ed-dcd33b2384c3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=83066c56-e959-4b5e-aa22-52625638b027.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=472c16ed-8d36-4e9c-8f6c-0e08156a55ea.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20643
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20641


February 9, 2022Community & Economic 

Development Committee

Meeting Agenda - Final

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed to Karen Harkness, 

Director, Community and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6468.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 2/4/2022



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Community & Economic Development 

Committee

4:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorWednesday, January 12, 2022

Call meeting to order1.

Chair Reed called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m.

Roll call of membership2.

Reed, Firkus, Thao, Alfheim and WolffPresent: 5 - 

Others present:

Kolby Knuth, Bela Development LLC/The 513

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

21-1767 CEDC Minutes from 11-10-21

CEDC Minutes 11-10-21.pdfAttachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Firkus, Thao, Alfheim and Wolff5 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Action Items5.

21-1768 Request to approve the Development Agreement (Phase II) with Merge 

LLC for a mixed-use development located on the southeast corner of W. 

Washington Street and N. Appleton Street (Tax Id #31-2-0272-00, 

31-2-0272-01, and 31-2-0272-02) in Tax Increment Financing District No. 

11

Merge Ph II DA Memo to CEDC 1-12-22.pdf

0871 - Merge - Phase 2 Dev Agrm - 2022-01-05.pdf

Attachments:

Firkus moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 1City of Appleton



January 12, 2022Community & Economic 

Development Committee

Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Reed, Firkus, Thao, Alfheim and Wolff5 - 

Information Items6.

21-1769 Annual Updates to the Housing Affordability Report and the Housing Fee 

Report

StaffMemo_HousingAffordability&FeeReports2020_For01-12-22.pdf

AppletonHousingAffordabilityReport2020_For01-12-22.pdf

AppletonHousingFeeReport2020_For01-12-22.pdf

Attachments:

This item was presented.

Adjournment7.

Reed moved, seconded by Wolff, that the meeting be adjourned at 4:39 p.m. 

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Reed, Firkus, Thao, Alfheim and Wolff5 - 

Page 2City of Appleton



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Community and Economic Development Committee  

 

FROM: Nikki Gerhard, Community Development Specialist 

 

DATE:  February 9, 2022 

 

RE: Amendment to Appleton Housing Authority 2020 Allocation  

 

 

On January 4, 2022, City staff received notification from the Appleton Housing Authority (AHA) seeking 

to reallocate their remaining balance of $42,824.66 from the 2020 program year to another agency and 

eligible activity.  This remaining balance was unspent funding originally allocated for the purposes of 

AHA’s First Time Homebuyer Program. 

 

Due to a significant amount of loan payoffs, as well as a vacancy in their Homebuyer Program Manager 

role for an extensive period, the AHA had originally requested program year extensions, expiring December 

31, 2021, in an effort to spend the funds down.  

 

Staff recommends reallocating the balance of $42,824.66 to Rebuilding Together Fox Valley (RTFV). 

RTFV’s homeowner rehabilitation program is a similar housing activity to AHA’s, which has been 

consistently funded since 2017.  Staff of RTFV has expressed interest in these funds, as they have already 

spent down their 2020 and 2021 allocations ($200,000 total) and have additional housing projects that could 

be expedited with this reallocation.  

Staff Recommendation: 

The reallocation of Appleton Housing Authority’s 2020PY $42,824.66 to Rebuilding Together Fox 

Valley’s 2021PY SubAgreement for homeowner rehabilitation BE APPROVED. 

The following attachments are provided for additional information for this action item.   

 

Attached Documents: 

 

1.) Email from Appleton Housing Authority staff requesting reallocation of unspent balance from 

2020PY. 

2.) Draft amendment to RTFV’s 2021PY SubAgreement, increasing their allocation to a total of 

$142,824.66. 

 

 

If you have any questions, please contact me at 832-6469 or nikki.gerhard@appleton.org.  Thank you! 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

mailto:nikki.gerhard@appleton.org


1

Nikki A. Gerhard

From: Aaron Hilbert <AaronH@appletonhousing.org>
Sent: Tuesday, January 4, 2022 4:04 PM
To: Nikki A. Gerhard
Cc: Debra Dillenberg; Karen Harkness; Monica Stage
Subject: RE: 2020 CDBG Extension Expiration

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 

Hi Nikki, 
We are still seeing a very large increase in loan payoffs. We currently have $64,000 in program income to spend prior to 
any contract dollars. Additionally, our Homebuyer Program Manager who was still in a probationary status did not work 
out, and we are currently searching for a replacement. 
  
We would like to request that the remaining $42,824.66 in 2020 funds be allocated to another agency. We would also 
like to request an extension of our 2021 funds to 12/31/2022. 
  
Thank You, 
  

Aaron Hilbert 
Finance Director 
Appleton Housing Authority 
925 W. Northland Ave. 
Appleton, WI 54914 
Ph: (920) 739-6811 x106 
Fax: (920) 739-6817 
aaronh@appletonhousing.org 

 
  

From: Nikki A. Gerhard <Nikki.Gerhard@Appleton.org>  
Sent: Monday, January 3, 2022 9:17 AM 
To: Aaron Hilbert <AaronH@appletonhousing.org> 
Cc: Debra Dillenberg <DebraD@appletonhousing.org>; Karen Harkness <Karen.Harkness@Appleton.org>; Monica Stage 
<Monica.Stage@appleton.org> 
Subject: RE: 2020 CDBG Extension Expiration 
Importance: High 
  
Good Morning Aaron, 
  
I wanted to reach out and follow up on the 2020 CDBG subagreement, as the requested extension expired on 
12/31/2021. 
  
Per my records, it appears that there is an outstanding balance remaining of $42,824.66. Will you be submitting a 
payment request for that balance, or will you be needing to seek an additional extension? 



2

  
Please advise. 
  
Thank you, 
  
Nikki  
  

From: Aaron Hilbert <AaronH@appletonhousing.org>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 2021 2:06 PM 
To: Nikki A. Gerhard <Nikki.Gerhard@Appleton.org> 
Cc: Debra Dillenberg <DebraD@appletonhousing.org> 
Subject: RE: 2020 CDBG Extension Expiration 
  
Hi Nikki, 
We are very close to hiring a new Homebuyer Program Manger however, due to the current vacancy in this position 
coupled with the current housing market we will be unable to spend these 2020 funds by 7/31/2021.  
We are also seeing an unprecedented number of payoffs this year making spending contract funds very difficult. In June 
and the first part of July alone we have received $21,000 in CDBG program income. 
  
We would like to request an extension on these funds through 12/31/21. 
We also wanted to inquire as to the possibility of spending our 2020 contract funds prior to the new CDBG program 
income continuously coming in? 
  
Thank You, 
  

Aaron Hilbert 
Finance Director 
Appleton Housing Authority 
925 W. Northland Ave. 
Appleton, WI 54914 
Ph: (920) 739-6811 x106 
Cell: (920) 205-7126 
Fax: (920) 739-6817 
aaronh@appletonhousing.org 

 
  

From: Nikki A. Gerhard <Nikki.Gerhard@Appleton.org>  
Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 9:00 AM 
To: Aaron Hilbert <AaronH@appletonhousing.org> 
Cc: Debra Dillenberg <DebraD@appletonhousing.org> 
Subject: 2020 CDBG Extension Expiration 
Importance: High 
  
Good Morning, 
  
Just a friendly reminder that your extension for the 2020 CDBG funds expires on July 31. Please have all payment 
requests and accomplishment reports submitted shortly thereafter. 
  



3

If you are in need of additional time, please submit a new extension request, which will be considered for approval. 
  
Thank you! 
  
Nikki  
  

 
Community Development Specialist 
City of Appleton 
100 N Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911 
(920) 832-6469 
nikki.gerhard@appleton.org 

 
  
Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links.  
Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution when opening 
attachments or clicking links.  



AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT 
SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT is made and entered by the below named parties as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about April 1, 2021, the City of Appleton (“City”) and Rebuilding Together Fox 
Valley (“RTFV”) entered into a subaward agreement for April 1, 2021, through March 31, 2022, a copy of 
which is incorporated herein by reference in its entirety (“Contract”); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, as of February 17, 2022, the parties to the Agreement mutually agree that it is 
reasonable to increase the original Contract award amount from $100,000 to $142,824.66 and wish to 
memorialize that increase.; and, 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and dependent documents, the 
undersigned agree: 

 
1. The approved sub-award to the Sub-Grantee in the amount of $100,000 in the Contract shall be 

amended to $142,824.66. 
 

2. All other terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain binding on the City and RTFV. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Rebuilding Together Fox Valley and the City of Appleton have executed 
this Amendment to Contract as of the date the same is signed by the City. 
 
 City of Appleton    Rebuilding Together Fox Valley 
 
By: _________________________________ By: _____________________________ 

Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor        Chip Wood, Executive Director 
       

Date: ____________________________ 
 
By: _________________________________ 
       Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
       Anthony D. Saucerman, Finance Director 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
       Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney 
 
Date: _________________________________ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Community and Economic Development Committee  

 

FROM: Nikki Gerhard, Community Development Specialist 

 

DATE:  February 9, 2022 

 

RE: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)-CV Policy 

 

 

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires entitlement grantees to outline 

the following aspects of the local Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)-CV Program:  a) 

elements to which the City of Appleton must adhere in order to comply with federal regulations; b) 

locally-established guidelines; and c) priorities for subrecipient and City Program activity. 

 

Staff is proposing the [attached] CDBG-CV Policy for approval. 

 

The Policy addresses the following:  

 

▪ Incorporating reference to CDBG-CV regulations; 

▪ Identification of eligible CDBG-CV activities; 

▪ Elimination of the public service categorical threshold; 

▪ Identification and prevention of duplication of benefits. 

 

 

If you have any questions, please contact me at 832-6469 or nikki.gerhard@appleton.org.  Thank 

you! 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

mailto:nikki.gerhard@appleton.org


City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 1 of 10 

2020-2026 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)- CV Policy 

Adopted 02/16/2022 

 
I. PURPOSE 

To outline the following aspects of the local Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)-CV Program: 
a) elements to which the City of Appleton must adhere in order to comply with federal regulations; b) 
locally-established guidelines; and c) priorities for subrecipient and City Program activity. 

 
II. POLICY 

The federal CDBG program was established with the passage of the Housing and Community Development 
Act of 1974. CDBG funds are distributed to eligible governmental units in two forms:  

(1). Entitlement grants directly to cities and counties, and; 
(2). State grants, which involve annual competitions for non-entitlement communities. 

 

Since 1975, the City of Appleton has received CDBG funds as an entitlement community. The amount of 
CDBG funds received each year varies based on the appropriation approved by the U.S. Congress and the 
number of governmental units eligible to participate. While the federal fiscal year operates from October 1 
to September 30, the City selected April 1 to March 31 as its CDBG fiscal year. This selection was made as 
the federal government generally does not release the aforementioned funds until springtime. Federal 
oversight lies within the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD). 
 

In addition to the regular CDBG requirements, CDBG-CV requires that CDBG-CV funds: 
• only assist activities that prevent, prepare for, or respond to Coronavirus, 
• do not result in a duplication of benefits, and 
• meet underwriting criteria for special economic development activities. 
 

III. FEDERAL REGULATIONS 
The citation reference from Title 24 Part 570 – Community Development Block Grants can be found in parentheses next to 
each heading below. Please view that section for more information on the respective item. This Policy will be revised 

periodically as required to fulfill related Federal, State, and/or local funding requirements.  

 

The Federal Register Notice 6218-N-01 describes how requirements of the CDBG Program are modified 
for CDBG-CV grants. 

 
A. Federal Eligibility (24 CFR 570.201) 

Primary activities that can be used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to Coronavirus with CDBG-CV 
funds include: 
 

(1). Public Service Activities 

• Homeless/Aids Patients • Senior Services 

• Services for Persons with Disabilities • Legal Services 

• Youth Services • Substance Abuse Services 

• Domestic Violence Services • Employment Training 

• Crime Awareness/Prevention • Fair Housing Activities 

• Tenant/Landlord Counseling • Child Care Services 

• Health Services • Abused & Neglected Children 



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 2 of 10 

• Mental Health Services • Screening for Lead-Based Paint/Poisoning 

• Subsistence Payments • Security Deposits 

• Food Banks • Housing Information & Referral Services 

• Housing Counseling •  
 
(2). Housing-Related Activities 

• Rehabilitation (Single/Multi Residential) • Construction of Housing (limited) 

• Direct Homeownership Assistance • Housing Counseling 

• Public Housing Modernization • Energy Efficiency Improvements 

• Rehabilitation Administration • Lead Based Paint Test/Abatement 

• Code Enforcement  

 
(3). Public Improvements & Facilities 

• Senior Centers • Facility for Persons with Disabilities 

• Homeless Facilities (not operating costs) • Youth Centers/Facilities 

• Neighborhood Facilities • Parks, Recreational Facilities 

• Parking Facilities • Solid Waste Disposal Facilities 

• Flood & Drainage Facilities • Water/Sewer Improvements 

• Sidewalks • Child Care Centers 

• Fire Stations/Equipment • Health Facilities 

• Removal of Architectural Barriers  

 
(4). Activities to Acquire Real Property 

• Acquisition of Property • Disposition 

• Clearance & Demolition • Clean-Up of Contaminated Site/Brownfields 

• Relocation  

 
(5). Economic Development Activities 

• Rehabilitation (Public or Private) • Commercial/Industrial Land Acquisition/Disposition 

• Commercial/Industrial Infrastructure • Commercial/Industrial Building Acquisition, 
Construction, Rehabilitation 

• Financial Assistance to For-Profits • Technical Assistance 

• Micro-Enterprise Assistance  

 
 Costs Eligible for Reimbursement 
 • Costs incurred before January 21, 2020, will not be reimbursed without written prior  
 approval from HUD  
 • Environmental review must be performed, and a Release of Funds must be obtained  
 in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58 prior to committing CDBG-CV funds to reimburse  
 costs.  
 • Grantees must sign a CDBG-CV agreement with a subrecipient before reimbursing pre-agreement costs.  

• Activities that incurred pre-award or pre-agreement costs in a CDBG-CV application before CDBG-CV 
funds are used to reimburse those costs. 
 



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 3 of 10 

Extension of Emergency Payments 
CDBG-CV funds may be used to provide emergency payments for individuals or families impacted by 
coronavirus for items such as food, clothing, housing (emergency rental or mortgage assistance) or utilities. 
The maximum period of such payments is extended from three to six consecutive months when used to 
prevent, prepare for, or respond to coronavirus.  
 
• Emergency payments must be made to the provider of such items or services on behalf of an individual or 
family, and not directly to an individual or family in the form of income payments, debit cards, gift cards or 
similar direct income payments.  
• Proper documentation must be maintained to ensure that all costs incurred are eligible.  
• Public service activities that provide for emergency payments must document, in their policies and 
procedures, how they will determine the amount of assistance to be provided is necessary and reasonable 

 
B. Ineligible Activities (24 CFR 570.207) 

The following activities may not be assisted with CDBG-CV funds: 
(1). Buildings (or portions thereof) for the General Conduct of Government 
(2). General Government Expenses 
(3). Political Activities 

(4). Float-funded activities 
 
The following activities are not eligible for CDBG-CV funding, but may be allowed under certain 
circumstances:

(1). Purchase of Equipment 
(2). Operating/Maintenance Expenses 

(3). New Housing Construction 
(4). Income Payments

 
 
C. Special Economic Development Projects (24 CFR 570.203) 

CDBG-CV funds may be used for special economic development activities in addition to other activities.  
Special economic development activities include: 

 

(1). Acquisition, construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or installation of commercial or industrial 
buildings, structures, and other real property equipment and improvements 

(2). Assistance to a private for-profit business, including, but not limited to, grants, loans, loan 
guarantees, interest supplements, technical assistance, and other forms of support, for any activity 
where the assistance is appropriate to carry out an economic development project 

(3). Economic development services, including, but not limited to, outreach efforts; screening of 
applicants; reviewing/underwriting applications; preparation of all necessary agreements; 
management of activities; and the screening, referral, and placement of applicants for employment 

 
D. National Objectives (24 CFR 570.208) 

In order to qualify for funding, CV activities must meet one of three CDBG national objectives: 
 

(1). Low & Moderate Income (LMI) Benefit  
a. Area Benefit: activities available for the benefit of all the residents in a particular area, where at 

least 51 percent of those residents are LMI persons. 
b. Limited Clientele: activities benefiting a specific group (i.e. abused children, elderly persons, 

battered spouses), at least 51 percent of whom are LMI persons. 
c. Housing: activities carried out for the purpose of providing or improving permanent 



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 4 of 10 

residential structures that, upon completion, will be occupied by LMI households. 
d. Job Creation/Retention: activities designed to create or retain permanent jobs where at least 51 

percent of the jobs involve the employment of LMI persons. 
 

(2). Slum & Blight Removal 
a. Area Basis: activities undertaken to eliminate specific conditions of blight, physical decay, or 

environmental contamination that are located in a designated area of distress, including 
acquisition, clearance, relocation, historic preservation, remediation of environmentally 
contaminated properties, or rehabilitation. Rehabilitation must eliminate conditions that are 
detrimental to public health/safety; acquisition and relocation must be precursors to other 
activities that eliminate blight. 

b. Spot Basis: activities undertaken to eliminate specific conditions of blight, physical decay, or 
environmental contamination at specific sites not located in designated blighted areas, 
including acquisition, clearance, relocation, historic preservation, remediation of 
environmentally contaminated properties, or rehabilitation. Rehabilitation must eliminate 
conditions that are detrimental to public health/safety; acquisition and relocation must be 
precursors to other activities that eliminate blight. 

 

(3). Urgent Need  

a. Activities designed to alleviate existing conditions of recent origin (18 months) that pose 
serious threats to the health and welfare of the community; this objective may only be used if 
the community cannot finance necessary activities with other sources. 

 

E. Categorical Limits 
(1). At least 70 percent of CDBG-CV funds utilized must be expended for LMI benefit; the costs of 

planning and program administration are excluded from this calculation. (24 CFR 570.200(a)(3)) 
(2). The CARES Act eliminates the 15% public services cap for all funds expended on activities to 

prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus under Section III.B.5(f)(iii) of the FR Notice. 
(3). The amount of CDBG-CV funds obligated for planning and administration activities in each 

program year may not exceed 20 percent of the total entitlement grant for that program year plus 
the program income received during that program year. (24 CFR 570.200(g)) 

 
F. Program Income (24 CFR 570.426) 

The receipt and expenditure of program income that is generated using CDBG-CV funds shall be treated as 
annual CDBG formula program income.  
• CDBG-CV program income will be recorded as annual CDBG formula grant program income in local 
accounting records.  
• Any CDBG-CV program income generated will be receipted in HUD's Integrated Disbursement and 
Information System (IDIS) as program income to the annual CDBG formula grant program and will be 
subject to the CDBG timeliness standards. 
 
As defined in 24CFR Part 570.500, program income includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

• Proceeds from the disposition by sale or long-term lease of real property purchased or improved with 
CDBG-CV funds; 

• Proceeds from the disposition of equipment purchased with CDBG-CV funds; 

• Gross income from the use or rental of real or personal property acquired by subrecipients with CDBG-
CV funds, less costs incidental to generation of the income; 

• Gross income from the use or rental of real property, owned by subrecipients that was constructed or 



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 5 of 10 

improved with CDBG-CV funds, less costs incidental to generation of the income; 

• Payments of principal and interest on loans made using CDBG-CV funds, except as provided in 24CFR 
570.500(a)(3); and 

• Interest earned on program income pending its disposition. 
 
Program income must be tracked in a chart of accounts, using a segregated account for managing sources 
and uses. By the 15th day of the month following the end of the quarter, the City’s Finance Department will 
review each transaction that generated program income and the subsequent transaction for which program 
income was applied. The program income will then be entered into the City’s Chart of Accounts so that it is 
reflected in the general ledger, as well as receipting the program income in IDIS so that draws can be made 
against the balance accordingly. The City maintains the discretion to enter program income more frequently 
as deemed necessary. 
 
CDBG-CV regulations require that, at the end of each program year (March 31), the City of Appleton must 
determine whether there is excess program income on hand, and return any excess to the line of credit.  

 
G. Fair Housing (24 CFR 570.601) 

The Secretary of HUD requires that: 
 

(1). Grantees must administer all activities related to housing and community development in a manner 
to affirmatively further the policies of the Fair Housing Act. (Public Law 90-284) 

(2). Entitlement communities shall conduct an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice every 
five years, take action to overcome the effects of the identified impediments and maintain records 
reflecting the analysis and related actions taken. 

 
H. Environmental Review Procedures (24 CFR 570.604) 

The environmental review procedures outlined in 24 CFR part 58 must be completed for each CDBG-CV 
subrecipient and City Program activity, as applicable. 

 
I. Faith-Based Activities (24 CFR 570.200) 

Religious or faith-based organizations are eligible to participate in the CDBG-CV program. Local 
government representatives and CDBG-CV program administrators shall not discriminate against an 
organization on the basis of its religious affiliation. 
 

J. Submission Requirements (24 CFR 570.302) 
CDBG-CV entitlement communities must submit the following documents: 

(1). Action Plan → annually 

(2). Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) → annually 

(3). Consolidated Plan → every three to five years, as chosen by the entitlement community 
Creation of these documents must follow HUD requirements for content and citizen participation 
(see the City of Appleton CDBG Citizen Participation Plan). 

 
K. Location of Activities (24 CFR 570.309) 

CDBG-CV funds may be awarded to an activity outside the jurisdiction of the entitlement community only 
if it can be determined that the activity directly benefits the entitlement community’s residents. 
Documentation of these benefits must be provided before CDBG-CV funds are awarded for the activity. 

 
 



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 6 of 10 

L. Conflict of Interest (24 CFR 570.611) 
No persons affiliated with the entitlement community (including subrecipients and City Programs) who 
exercise or have exercised any responsibilities with respect to CDBG-CV programming, or who are in a 
position to participate in a decision-making process, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a 
CDBG-CV-assisted activity (including subcontracts), either for themselves or those with whom they have 
business or immediate family ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter. 

 
M. Duplication of Benefits 

As part of the CARES Act and described in FR-6218-N-01 (CDBG-CV Federal Register Notice), HUD 
must ensure that there are adequate procedures in place to prevent any duplication of benefits as required by 
Section 312 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford Act), as 
amended by section 1210 of the Disaster Recovery Reform Act (DRRA) of 2018. 
 
A duplication of benefits (DOB) occurs when a person, household, business, government, or other entity 
receives financial assistance from multiple sources for the same purpose, and the total assistance received 
for that purpose is more than the total need for assistance. To comply with DOB requirements, grantees are 
required by the CARES Act to establish and follow procedures to ensure that DOB does not occur. 
Establishing a process to effectively identify and prevent duplication of benefits is critical for CDBG-CV 
grantees to effectively manage the multiple active funding streams related to coronavirus response and 
efficiently target CDBG-CV resources to meet unmet needs within the community. 

 
To prevent the duplication of benefits, policies and procedures include the following components: 

(1). Any person or entity receiving CDBG-CV assistance (including subrecipients and direct 
beneficiaries) must agree to repay assistance that is determined to be duplicative. This will be 
documented through a duplication of benefit form or similar clause included in the agreement with 
the entity. The Grantee will continue to monitor compliance based on risk of duplication of benefits 
for each activity.  

(2). Evaluation of the need and resources available to meet that need to assess whether the use of 
CDBG-CV funds will duplicate financial assistance that is already received or is likely to be received 
(such as insurance proceeds). Current resources available include local, county, state, and federal 
level and current and anticipated non-governmental assistance from nonprofits or faith-based 
groups.  

 
Grantee will prioritize CDBG-CV activities that address unmet needs and gaps to reduce the risk of 
duplication of benefits.  
 
To analyze duplication of benefits, the following steps have been incorporated into the CDBG-CV 
application process:  
(1). Assess Need: Determine the amount of need (total cost)  
(2). Determine Assistance: Determine the amount of assistance that has or will be provided from all sources 
to pay for the cost  
(3). Calculate Unmet Need: Determine the amount of assistance already provided compared to the need to 
determine the maximum CDBG-CV award (unmet need)  
(4). Document analysis: Document calculation and maintain adequate documentation justifying 
determination of maximum award 
 



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 7 of 10 

IV. LOCAL PROGRAM GUIDELINES  
 
A. Program Oversight 

The Community and Economic Development Committee (CEDC) – composed of five aldermen appointed 
by the Mayor – serves as the jurisdiction for Common Council oversight of the CDBG-CV Program. Local 
financial oversight lies with the City of Appleton Finance Department. Local administrative/programmatic 
oversight lies with the City of Appleton Community and Economic Development Department (CEDD). 

 
B. Consolidated Plan Submission 

The City of Appleton has elected to submit a Consolidated Plan to HUD every five years. The Citizen 
Participation Plan provides for and encourages citizens to participate in the development of the 
Consolidated Plan, which will begin approximately one year before the required submittal date. 

 
C. Definitions 

• Subrecipient – an entity charged with implementation of one or more activities funded with 
Appleton CDBG-CV dollars 

▪ community partner subrecipient – local agencies awarded CDBG-CV-funding to implement 
an eligible activity via a competitive application process 

▪ public services subrecipient – local agencies awarded CDBG-CV-funding to implement an 
eligible public service activity via a competitive application process 

• Adjusted award – the amount of CDBG-CV funds available to City Programs and subrecipients 
after administration, fair housing, and audit allocations are deducted 

 
D. Local Categorical Limits 

The following limits expand upon federal categorical limits associated with the CDBG program: 
 

(1). At least 70 percent of CDBG-CV funds utilized must be expended for LMI benefit; this excludes 
planning/CDBG-CV administration activities. 

(2). The CARES Act eliminates the 15% public services cap for all funds expended on activities to 
prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus under Section III.B.5(f)(iii) of the FR Notice. 

(3). The amount of CDBG-CV funds obligated for planning/CDBG-CV administration activities in 
each program year may not exceed 20 percent of the total entitlement grant for that year. 

(4). Any single award will not be less than $10,000. 
 
E.  Audit Requirements 

Section 2 Part 200 of the Code of Federal Regulations and the State Single Audit Guidelines require major 
state programs and federal programs to complete a single audit. The necessary amount for fulfilling these 
requirements will be identified by the Finance Department and the City’s independent auditors. This 
amount will be deducted from the estimated amount available for the program year and not included in the 
estimates of the adjusted award. 
 

F. Program Administration 
HUD requires entitlement communities to provide for efficient and adequate administration of CDBG-CV 
programming. Administration costs may only include: salary/fringe, necessary training/travel, supplies and 
telephone/postage, in addition to fair housing services and audit costs. The necessary amount for fulfilling 
this requirement will be identified by the Community and Economic Development and Finance 
Departments. This amount will be deducted from the estimated amount available for the program year and 
not included in the estimates of the adjusted award.   



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 8 of 10 

 
G. City Allocation Process 

The application will include information relating to goals, outputs, budget/financing, detailed activity 
descriptions, capacity, performance, and tieback to prevent, prepare for, and respond to Coronavirus. 
CEDD staff, per HUD rules and regulations, will perform an administrative review of each plan to ensure 
that: 
 

1. Proposed activities are included within the listing of eligible activities (24 CFR 570.201) 
2. Proposed activities do not fall within a category of explicitly ineligible activities (24 CFR 570.207) 
3. Proposed activities will meet one of the national objectives of the program (24 CFR 570.200) 
4. Proposed activities will address priority needs as identified in the Consolidated Plan 

 
During efforts to prevent the spread of infectious disease and mitigate economic impacts caused by 
infectious disease, the community partner subrecipient allocation process will be waived.  
Upon completion of the administrative review, the plans will be presented to the CEDC. CEDC will also 
review the submitted plans to ensure the proposed activities meet the four standards listed above and 
allocate adequate funds for each plan. Final approval of allocations and projects will be presented to 
Common Council, subsequent to the completion of the required public comment period. 

 
H. Subrecipient Agreement 

Community partner subrecipients of CDBG-CV funds must enter into a subrecipient agreement with the 
City of Appleton. This subrecipient agreement serves as a formal contract addressing the various policies 
outlined in this document, in addition to contract amount/term, reimbursement requests, accomplishment  
reporting, monitoring, financial management guidelines, conflict of interest, and additional federal standards, 
including lead-based paint regulations and the Davis Bacon Act.. To ensure all parties understand the 
requirements of their agreement, a mandatory training session will be held with new subrecipients before 
funds are released. Technical assistance from staff will be available to all subrecipients throughout the 
program year. 

 
I. Statement of Work 

All subrecipients shall submit a concise Statement of Work that illustrates an implementation plan for their 
CDBG-CV activity. This Statement, which will be attached to the subrecipient agreement includes: national 
objective claimed, activity descriptions, intended beneficiaries (number and type), detailed budget and 
location(s) of program-related activity. 

 
J. Report Submissions 

All subrecipients are required to submit a report of their accomplishments with each payment request 
during the program year when applicable, as well as an Annual Report, which is a comprehensive report 
covering the agreed upon objectives, activities and expenditures for the entire contract period. If said 
reports are not attached to payment requests when required, payments will be withheld until the report is 
submitted.  
 

K. Change of Use 
If a subrecipient wishes to utilize CDBG-CV funds for an activity not identified on their original 
application, they are required to submit a detailed letter to the CEDD explaining the reasoning for and 
amount of the proposed change and a public comment period may be held per the Citizen Participation 
Plan.  



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 9 of 10 

 
L. Displacement/Relocation 

Due to the potential liability for long-term assistance and burdens placed on affected tenants, the City of 
Appleton will avoid funding CDBG-CV projects that involve permanent residential displacement or 
business relocation unless displacement/relocation prove to be the only means available to correct a public 
health/safety hazard or other critical condition. 
 

M. Procurement 
The City of Appleton Procurement Policy applies to all CDBG-CV activities, including both City Programs 
and subrecipients that involve the purchase of equipment, materials, supplies and/or services. A copy of this 
policy will be distributed to all subrecipients. 

 
N. Audits 

All subrecipients are required to submit one copy of their audited financial statement immediately following 
the end of their fiscal year during which CDBG-CV funds are received, unless an alternate arrangement has 
been made with the City of Appleton Finance Department.  

 
O. Disputes 

Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under a subrecipient program or City Program shall be 
resolved by CEDD staff, who shall relay his/her decision in writing to the subrecipient or City Program, in 
addition to furnishing a copy to the Mayor and the CEDC. The decision of CEDD staff shall be final and 
conclusive unless the subrecipient or City Program furnishes a written appeal to the CEDC within ten days 
of the date of receipt of such copy. The decision of the CEDC in such appeals shall be final and conclusive 
unless appealed to a court of competent jurisdiction within 30 days of receipt of the CEDC’s decision. 

 
P. Unspent Grant Funds 

Any uncommitted CDBG-CV funds remaining at the subrecipient agreement will be reprogrammed to 
another eligible activity. The subrecipient shall submit a carryover request, including both documentation of 
plans for expending funds and a timeline for the expenditure, to CEDD staff. If any unspent grant funds 
remain, CEDD staff will meet with the subrecipient to determine if further action needs to be taken to 
expedite the expenditure of funds. 
 

Q. Termination 
If the subrecipient fails to fulfill, in timely and proper manner, its obligations under the Statement of Work, 
or if they violate any stipulations contained within the subrecipient agreement, the City has the right to 
terminate funding of their program. Written notice will be delivered at least 30 days before the termination. 

 
R. Examination of Records/Monitoring 

The policy of the City of Appleton is to monitor its subrecipients in a manner consistent with the 
requirements of 24 CFR 570.2, 2 CFR 200.328, and 2 CFR 200.331(d). The subrecipient shall maintain 
records (including books, documentation and other evidence) pertaining to the costs of carrying out their 
activity to the extent of detail that will adequately reflect net costs, direct and indirect labor, materials, 
equipment, supplies/services, and other expenses. Authorized representatives of the City or HUD shall have 
access to subrecipient and City Program records at reasonable times of the business day for inspection, audit 
or reproduction. Subrecipients and City Programs must make these records available throughout the 
program year and four years after it expires. Furthermore, CEDD staff may schedule monitoring visits with 
the subrecipient to evaluate the progress/performance of the program and provide technical assistance. The 



City of Appleton 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CV 

 

 

Page 10 of 10 

City of Appleton’s Grant Administration Procedures manual should be referenced for further guidance on 
subrecipient tracking and monitoring requirements.  

 
S. Financial Management Systems 

Subrecipients must employ financial management systems that are capable of generating regular financial 
status reports indicating the dollar amount allocated (including budget revisions), amount obligated, and 
amount expended for each activity. The system must permit the comparison of actual expenditures and 
revenues against budgeted amounts. The City must be able to isolate/trace every CDBG-CV dollar received. 
 

T. Payment Requests 
Community partner subrecipients will submit requests for payment with attached supporting documentation 
to the CEDD. Payment requests shall be allowed on a reimbursement basis (i.e. only after expenditures have 
been incurred) and shall be reviewed to ensure the expenditures are in conformity with the use of funds as 
described in the Statement of Work. If source documentation is deemed inadequate by Staff, all payments 
will be withheld until all required documents have been submitted. Payment requests received and approved 
will be processed and a check issued in accordance with the City of Appleton Finance Department weekly 
pay cycle. All payment requests must contain an original signature.  
 

U. Program Income 
The receipt and expenditure of program income that is generated using CDBG-CV funds shall be treated as 
annual CDBG formula program income.  
• CDBG-CV program income will be recorded as annual CDBG formula grant program income in local 
accounting records.  
• Any CDBG-CV program income generated will be receipted in HUD's Integrated Disbursement and 
Information System (IDIS) as program income to the annual CDBG formula grant program and will be 
subject to the CDBG timeliness standards.  
 
Anticipated program income must be documented and described in the subrecipient or City Program 
proposal/application. Furthermore, any and all program income received must be reported to the City of 
Appleton’s Community and Economic Development and Finance Departments, unless otherwise specified 
in this contract. 

 
V. CDBG-CV Activity Promotion 

All subrecipients are required to participate in promotion of the City of Appleton CDBG-CV Program. 
Expectations will be outlined by staff at the beginning of the program year and may include, but are not 
limited to: 

• Inclusion of the Appleton/CDBG logo in materials/at project sites 

• Mentorship of a subrecipient new to the CDBG Program 

• Participation in a CDBG Open House to showcase grant activities 
 



 

 

Resolution No. 2022-01 
 
 

AMENDING THE ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION AND THE BY-LAWS OF 
EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Appleton is a member of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning 
Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Appleton is a local unit of government in Calumet, Outagamie, and Winnebago 
Counties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Articles of Organization (“Articles”) and the By-Laws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional 
Planning Commission (“Commission”) authorize a majority of the counties of the Commission to make certain 
amendments to the Articles and By-Laws; and 
 
WHEREAS, however, the Articles and By-Laws reserve to the local units of government within the 
Commission the authority to determine the composition of the Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission’s Steering Committee and the Commission are recommending to both the 
member counties and the local units of government the amendments to the Articles and the By-Laws 
described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution is presented by the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission to 
the City of Appleton Common Council. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Appleton Common Council does 
hereby approve the revisions to the By-Laws as more fully set forth in the attached document; 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Appleton Common Council 
does hereby recommend that Article III of the Articles describing the composition of the 
Commission also be amended as more fully set forth in attached document; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be directed to forward a 
copy of the signed Resolution to the Executive Director of the East Central Wisconsin Regional 
Planning Commission. 
 

Adopted this ______  day of February 2022. 
 
 

               
         Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor  

 
 

       
Attest: Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



  

 

 

DATE:  January 12, 2022 

 

TO: Local Municipalities and Towns in Outagamie County 

 

FROM: Melissa Kraemer Badtke, Executive Director 

 

RE: Recommendations of Amendments to Articles of Organization and By-laws 

 

The East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (ECWRPC) is a regional planning 

agency serving Calumet, Fond du Lac, Menominee, Outagamie, Shawano, Waupaca, Waushara, 

and Winnebago Counties. Regional Planning Commissions were formed by the executive order of 

the governor under Wis. State Statues §66.0309. The Wisconsin statutes specify that regional 

planning commissions are to provide intergovernmental planning and coordination for physical, 

social and economic development of the region.  

 

The East Central Wisconsin Regional Commission Planning Commission is recommending 

amendments to the East Central’s Articles of Organization and By-laws to remove the 

Gubernatorial appointments because of the extreme delays in obtaining the Appointments for the 

Commission Board. The Commission Board made additional changes to the Articles of 

Organization and the By-laws and both documents were finalized and approved by the 

Commission Board on April 30, 2021. Outagamie County approved a resolution of support on July 

13, 2021. 

 

Enclosed you will find a copy of the revised Articles of Organization and the By-laws for your 

review. For your convenience we are also enclosing a draft form resolution the Commission is 

recommending that you approve. The following steps would need to be taken by the local units of 

government, including the Counties to assist in this process:  

 

1. A majority of the local units of governments (as defined as counties, towns, villages, and 

cities) would need to approve a resolution amending East Central’s Articles of 

Organization and the By-laws.  

2. A copy of the signed resolution will need to be sent Melissa Kraemer Badtke, Executive 

Director at mbadtke@ecwrpc.org.  

 

If you have any questions, please contact: 

 

Melissa Kraemer Badtke, Executive Director  

East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission 

Phone: 920-886-6828  

Cell Phone: 920-2020-1479 

Email: mbadtke@ecwrpc.org  

 

mailto:mbadtke@ecwrpc.org
mailto:mbadtke@ecwrpc.org


EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

COMMISSION COMPOSITION & PROPOSED BYLAWS CHANGES

Updated: 4/30/2021

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 4/30/2021

Number of 
Commissioners

36 31

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

County Bd. Chair County Bd. Chair
County Bd. Appt. County Bd. Appt.

Mayor of Largest City
Mayor of Largest City

Governor's Appt.

Number of 
Commissioners

4 3

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

County Executive County Executive
County Bd. Chair County Bd. Chair

County Bd. Appt.
County Bd. Appt. Council Pres. of Largest City

Council Pres. of Largest City

Governor's Appt.

Number of 
Commissioners

5 4

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

County Bd. Chair County Bd. Chair
County Bd. Appt. County Bd. Appt.
Governor's Appt. County Bd. Appt.

Number of 
Commissioners

3 3

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

County Executive County Executive
County Bd. Chair County Bd. Chair

Mayor of Largest City County Bd. Appt.
County Bd. Appt. County Bd. Appt.
County Bd. Appt. Mayor of Largest City
Governor's Appt.

Number of 
Commissioners

6 5

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

County Bd. Chair County Bd. Chair
County Bd. Appt. County Bd. Appt. 
Governor's Appt. County Bd. Appt. 

Number of 
Commissioners

3 3

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

County Bd. Chair County Bd. Chair
County Bd. Appt. County Bd. Appt. 

Mayor of Largest City Mayor of Largest City
Governor's Appt.

Number of 
Commissioners

4 3

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

County Bd. Chair County Bd. Chair
County Bd. Appt. County Bd. Appt.
Governor's Appt. County Bd. Appt.

Number of 
Commissioners

3 3

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

County Executive County Executive
County Bd. Chair County Bd. Chair
County Bd. Appt. County Bd. Appt.
County Bd. Appt. County Bd. Appt.

Mayor of Largest City Mayor of Largest City
Governor's Appt.

Number of 
Commissioners

6 5

Current Board Composition
New Bylaws Board Composition as 

approved 1/29/2021

WisDOT WisDOT 

Valley Transit Valley Transit

Number of 
Commissioners

2 2

EX-OFFICO MEMBERS APPLETON (FOX CITIES) MPO

Commission Board 
Representatives

WAUSHARA COUNTY

Commission Board 
Representation

WINNEBAGO COUNTY

Commission Board 
Representation

SHAWANO COUNTY

Commission Board 
Representation

WAUPACA COUNTY

Commission Board 
Representation

MENOMINEE COUNTY

Commission Board 
Representation

OUTAGAMIE COUNTY

Commission Board 
Representation

COMMISSION BOARD COMPOSITION

CALUMET COUNTY

Commission Board 
Representation

FOND DU LAC COUNTY

Commission Board 
Representation





 

{07632779.DOCX.1}  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION 
 
 OF 
 
 EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 September 27, 1972 
 



 

{07632779.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 1 

 ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION 
 OF 
 EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 
 ARTICLE I - AUTHORIZATION 
 
 

 The provisions of Section 66.945 of the Wis. Stats. authorizes counties, in the form of resolutions, to 

petition the Governor of the State of Wisconsin to create a regional planning commission within a 

proposed area.  Upon receipt of such petitions and the holding of a public hearing, the governor may 

create a regional planning commission by Order and designate the areas and boundaries of the 

commission's jurisdiction. 

 Pursuant to such statutory provisions the governing bodies of Calumet, Fond du Lac, Green Lake, 

Marquette, Menominee, Outagamie, Shawano, Waupaca, Waushara, and Winnebago Counties, by 

resolution, petitioned the Honorable Patrick J. Lucey to form a regional planning commission 

encompassing the general area of such counties.  Thereafter a public hearing on such petitions was duly 

held at the Winnebago Court House located in the City of Oshkosh, Wisconsin, on the 26th day of June, 

1972.  Subsequent to the said public hearing, the Honorable Governor Patrick J. Lucey did by an 

Executive Order dated June 29, 1972, create the Regional Planning Commission and designate that the 

area of the Commission be comprised of the Counties of Calumet, Fond du Lac, Green Lake, Marquette, 

Menominee, Outagamie, Shawano, Waupaca, Waushara, and Winnebago. 

 

 ARTICLE II - NAME 

 The said counties comprising the Regional Planning Commission, as designated by the Governor's 

Executive Order dated June 29, 1972, are all located within the proximity of the East Central area of 

Wisconsin; and, therefore, the name of the Commission shall be:  EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION. 

 

 



 

{07632779.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 2 

 ARTICLE III - COMPOSITION OF COMMISSION 

 The area of the Commission as designated by the Executive Order of the Governor does not include a 

city of the first class as defined in Wis. Stat. Section 62.05.  Therefore, pursuant to the provisions of Wis. 

Stat. Section 66.0309(3) (b) the membership of the Commission is to be determined by resolutions duly 

approved by the governing bodies of a majority of the local units within the region, and these units shall 

have in the aggregate at least half of the population of the region. 

 The said ten-county area comprising the Commission includes 243 local units of government with a 

combined population of 474,186 as shown by the last Federal census.  A majority or 145 of these local 

units within the designated region representing a population count of 629,428 have duly adopted the 

following resolutions as to membership of the Commission: [Update numbers recited in this 

paragraph.] 

Section 1.  GENERAL:  Adhering to the principle of representation based on population, the 

membership of the Commission shall be created pursuant to the provisions of Wis. Stat. Section 66.0309 

(3) (b)  determined and allocated among participating counties as follows: 

 A. Two elected officials from each member county which comprises the Commission.The 

Chairperson and the County Executive from each member county within the Commission. If a 

member county is organized without a County Executive, the County Chairperson shall 

appoint a member of the County Board to serve as the second elected official from that 

county. 

 B. One person, who may be elected official from each participating county, selected by the 

Governor.One elected official from the largest city, if the member County has a population of 

50,0000 or more as defined by the U.S. Decennial Census. If the member County does not have 

a population of 50,000 or more per the U.S. Decennial Census, the member County may 

appoint a County Supervisor to the Commission Board.  or if no city the largest village, 

within each member county, appointed by the mayor, council president, or village president, 

depending on the specific form of government. 



 

{07632779.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 3 

  

         C. In addition to the representation specified in subsections A. and B., above, Counties with a 

population greater than 50,000 based on the U.S. Decennial Census are entitled to one 

additional member to the Commission Board for each full unit of 50,000 population that 

exceeds the 50,000 base number described in subsection B., above. (For purposes of 

illustration only, a County with a population of 180,000 would be entitled to 2 additional 

members to the Commission Board under this subsection C.)One (1) additional elected 

official from each 50,000 unit of population residing within a member county as determined 

by the last federal decennial census.  No additional representation hereunder shall be granted 

for any fractional part of the required population unit. 

      D.  One ex-officio representative of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) may 

participate on transportation issues, subjects of concern and interest to their geographic 

areas, or due to noted/recognized expertise. This member must be appointed by WisDOT. 

 DE.. One ex-officio representative of a public agency that administers or operates major modes of 

transportation in the Fox Valley metropolitan planning organization area, including 

representation by providers of public transportation. [Note: This position will be held by the 

Transit Manager for Valley Transit.] 

 

Section 2.  SELECTION OF MEMBERSHIP:  The Commission membership as set forth in the preceding 

Section 1 of this Article shall consist of members to include the following: 

 A. The Chairman of the County Board of each participating County and the County Executive, if 

any, of each participating County shall be members of said Commission. 

 B. One member from each participating County shall be appointed by the Governor from a list of 

six or more persons nominated by the respective County Boards, of which at least four shall 

be private citizens.  In nominating private citizens, the County Board shall give preference to 

those persons having experience in multi-jurisdictional efforts in one or more of the following 



 

{07632779.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 4 

areas:  land use planning, transportation, law, finance, engineering, recreation and natural 

resources development, social or economic planning. 

 C. The remaining elected officials comprising the representation allocated to each participating 

County under Section 1, Paragraph A, shall be appointed by the Chairman of the County Board 

or by the County Executive as the Wis. Stats. so provide and subject to confirmation by the 

County Board.  In those counties having additional representation as specified in Section 1, 

Paragraph C, the first such representative shall be the mayor, or council president in cities 

with a council-manager plan, of the largest city in the County.  All additional representatives 

shall be either county supervisors, city mayors, aldermen or councilmen, village presidents or 

board members, town board chairmen or town board supervisors residing within the 

respective County. 

Section 32.  TERM OF OFFICE:  Those Commissioners who are appointed by the County Board 

Chairman or the County Executive shall serve for a term of two (2) years, or until they cease 

to hold their public office, whichever comes first. Voting, ex-officio members shall serve 

continuously at the pleasure of the appointing body. 

 Those Commissioners appointed by the Governor shall serve for a four (4) year term. 

Section 3.  COMMISSION ALTERNATES: Any member of the Commission selected pursuant to Section 

1, of this Article may designate, in writing and with the concurrence of the Commission a permanent 

designee. 

Section 4.  RESIGNATION:  Any Commissioner  who resigns his or her Commission membership or his 

or her elective office shall submit his or her resignation effective as of the last day in office, and 

thereafter the vacancy shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term by the County Board 

Chairperson (if a county) or the city council or village board. 

  

ARTICLE IV - PURPOSES 

 The purposes for which the Commission is created are to engage in any lawful activity within the 



 

{07632779.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 5 

purposes for which regional planning commissions may be created under Wis. Stat. Section 66.0309. 

 ARTICLE V - POWERS, FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES 

 In general, the Regional Planning Commission shall have all of the powers necessary to enable it to 

perform its functions and promote regional planning. 

 The functions of the Regional Planning Commission shall be solely advisory to the local governments 

and local governmental officials comprising the area and shall include but not be limited to the following 

because of enumeration. 

 A. The Commission may conduct all types of research studies, collect and analyze data, prepare 

maps, charts and tables and conduct all necessary studies for the accomplishment of its other 

duties. 

 B. The Commission may make plans for the physical, social and economic development of the 

region and may adopt by resolution any plan or the promotion of any plan so prepared as its 

official recommendation for the development of the region. 

 C. The Commission may publicize and advertise its purposes, objectives and findings and may 

distribute reports thereon. 

 D. The Commission may provide advisory services on regional planning problems to the local 

government units within the region and to other public and private agencies in matters 

relative to its functions and objectives. 

 E. The Commission may act as a coordinating agency for programs and activities of such local 

units and agencies as the relate to its objectives. 

 F. The Commission may accept aid in any form for the purpose of accomplishing regional 

planning from all governmental agencies whether local, state or federal if the conditions 

under which such aid is furnished is not incompatible with the provisions of Wis. Stat.  

Section 66.0309. 

 G. The Commission may accept gifts and grants from public or private individuals or agencies if 

the conditions under which such grants are made are in accordance with the accomplishment 



 

{07632779.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 6 

of its objectives. 

 H. The Commission shall make an annual report of its activities to the legislative bodies, the local 

governmental units within the region, and shall submit two copies of such report to the 

Legislative Reference Bureau. 

 I. The Commission shall prepare a comprehensive planning program for the physical 

development of the region.  The Commission may amend, extend or add to the comprehensive 

planning program or carry any part of such mater into greater detail. 

 J. The Commission shall annually on or before October 1, of each year prepare and approve a 

budget reflecting the cost of its operation and services to the local governmental units within 

the region. 

 

 ARTICLE VI - PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF COSTS 

 The member counties of the Commission shall provide their proportionate share of the public funds 

necessary to meet the requirements of the budget in the amount represented by the percentage of their 

equalized valuation for tax purposes of the land, buildings and other improvements thereon of such local 

and governmental unit, within the region, to the total such equalized valuation within the region.  The 

amount charged shall be in accordance with the most recent equalized valuation figures published by 

the Wisconsin Department of Taxation.  The requested allocation from and levied upon each member 

county shall not exceed the statutory limits of a .003% of such equalized value under its jurisdiction 

within the region. 

 

 ARTICLE VII - ADMINISTRATION 

 The administrative affairs and the rules of procedure of the Regional Planning Commission shall be 

governed in the manner as provided for in the duly adopted By-laws of the Commission.  In compliance 

with the statutory requirements, the said adopted By-laws shall provide for the election of a chairman 

and executive committee and an annual meeting of the said Commission. 



 

{07632779.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 7 

 ARTICLE VIII - WITHDRAWAL 

 A member county of the Commission may withdraw from the Regional Planning Commission at the 

end of any fiscal year by a two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the members elect of its Board of Supervisors 

taken at least six months prior to the effective date of such withdrawal. 

 

 ARTICLE IX - AMENDMENTS 

 These Articles, except Article III, may be amended by resolutions duly adopted by the Board of 

Supervisors from a majority of the counties which are members of this Commission.  Article III shall be 

amended only in accordance with resolutions approved by the governing bodies of a majority of local 

units within the region, and these units shall have in the aggregate at least half of the population of the 

region. 

 

 

 

 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 1 

BY-LAWS 
 

of the 
 

EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 

September 27, 1972 
As Amended February 8, 1973 
As Amended March 11, 1976 
As Amended May 13, 1976 
As Amended May 8, 1980 
As Amended May 14, 1981 
As Amended May 13, 1982 
As Amended April 25, 1985 
As Amended April 28, 1988 
As Amended April 26, 1990 
As Amended April 30, 1993 
As Amended April 28, 1995 
As Amended May 23, 2001 
As Amended April 26, 2002 
As Amended April 27, 2006 
As Amended, April, 25, 2008 

As Amended, October 30, 2009 
As Amended, April 29, 2011 

As Amended, October 26, 2013 
As Amended, April 25, 2014 
As Amended, July 25, 2014 

As Amended, January 30, 2015 
As Amended July 26, 2019 

As Amended _______________, 2021 
 
  
 
  



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 2 

BY-LAWS 
 
 of the 
 
 EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
 
 PREAMBLE  
 
These By-laws, consistent with the statutes of the State of Wisconsin, and the Articles of 
Organization of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission, further define, 
regulate, and provide rules of procedure for the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning 
Commission and those Committees and officers established by and responsible to it, and have 
been adopted by the Commission for that purpose.  Where the word "Commission" appears 
hereinafter, it shall be construed to mean the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning 
Commission.  It is the express intent of the Commission and the purpose of these By-laws to 
advance the regional function of the Commission as provided for by applicable law and to carry 
on the business of regional metropolitan and non-metropolitan planning and development in all 
of its ramifications and branches and to render professional and technical services in 
conjunction therewith.  
 
 
 ARTICLE I - OFFICES 
 
Section 1.  The Commission shall establish its offices at such location as it may from time to 
time, except that such location will be within the East Central Wisconsin Region, which is 
comprised of the Counties of Calumet, Fond du Lac, Menominee, Outagamie, Shawano, 
Waupaca, Waushara and Winnebago.  
 
 
 ARTICLE II -POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
Section 1.  PURPOSE:  The purposes for which the Commission is created are to engage in 
any lawful activity within the purposes for which regional planning commissions may be created 
under Section 66.0309 of the Wisconsin Statutes, as amended.  
 
Section 2.  POWERS, FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  In general, the  
Commission shall have all of the powers necessary to enable it to perform its functions and 
promote regional planning.   
 
The functions of the Commission shall be solely advisory to the local governments and local 
governmental officials comprising the area and shall include but not be limited to the following 
because of enumeration.  
 
 A. The Commission may conduct all types of research studies, collect and analyze 

data, prepare maps, charts and tables and conduct all necessary studies for the 
accomplishment of its other duties.  



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 3 

 B. The Commission may make plans for the physical, social and economic 
development of the region and may adopt by resolution any plan or the portion of 
any plan so prepared as its official recommendation for the development of the 
region.  

 
 C. The Commission may publicize and advertise its purposes, objectives and findings 

and may distribute reports thereon.  
 
 D. The Commission may provide advisory services on regional planning problems to 

the local government units within the region and to other public and private 
agencies in matters relative to its functions and objectives.  

 
 E. The Commission may act as a coordinating agency for programs and activities of 

such local units and agencies as they relate to its objectives.  
 
 F. The Commission may accept aid in any form for the purpose of accomplishing 

regional planning for all governmental agencies  whether local, state or federal if 
the conditions under which such aid is furnished is not incompatible with the 
provisions of Section 66.0309 of the Wisconsin Statutes, as amended.  

 
 G. The Commission may accept gifts and grants from public or private individuals, 

entities or agencies if the conditions under which such grants are made in 
accordance with the accomplishment of its objectives.  

 
 H. The Commission shall make an annual report of its activities to the legislative 

bodies of the local governmental units within the region, and shall submit two 
copies of such report to the Wisconsin Legislative Reference Bureau per Wisconsin 
State Statutes § 66.0309(8)(b), as amended.  

 
 I. The Commission shall prepare a comprehensive planning program for the physical 

development of the region and adopt a regional comprehensive plan consistent 
with Wisconsin State Statutes §66.1001(9) as outlined in the  Wisconsin State 
Statutes §66.0309(9) and §66.0309(10), as amended.  The Commission may 
amend, extend or add to the comprehensive planning program or carry any part of 
such matter into greater detail.  

 
 J. The Commission shall annually on or before July 31 of each year prepare and 

approve a preliminary budget reflecting the cost of its operation and services to the 
participating governmental units within the region.   The Commission’s final budget 
shall be approved by or before January 31 of the year following. 

 
 
 ARTICLE III - MEETINGS  
 
Section 1.  ANNUAL MEETING:  There shall be an annual meeting of the Commission in 
conjunction with, and following, the April Quarterly Meeting for the appointment of standing 
committee membership, a presentation of the Commission's Annual Report of its activities and 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 4 

any other business as may properly come before it.  
 
Section 2.  QUARTERLY MEETINGS:  In addition to the annual meeting, quarterly meetings 
of the Commission shall be held on the last Friday of January, April, July and October, except 
when a different date is designated by the officers.  When the agenda of any meeting does not 
include resolutions for deliberation by the Commission or consideration of said resolutions may 
be delayed to the next meeting without adversely impacting the work flow of the Commission, 
the Chairperson may cancel and then reschedule any meeting at their discretion, but may not 
cancel two consecutive meetings.  The election of officers shall be conducted by the 
Commission at the April quarterly meeting.  The levy and draft annual budget shall be adopted 
by the Commission at the July quarterly meeting.  The annual budget and work program (not 
levy) shall be re-affirmed at the subsequent January meeting.  
  
Section 3.  SPECIAL MEETINGS:  Special meetings may be called at any time by the 
Chairperson of the Commission.  Special meetings shall also be called by the Chairperson upon 
written request by three or more members of the Commission.  
 
Section 4.  NOTICE OF MEETINGS:  The Secretary of the Commission shall  send to each and 
every member of the Commission notice of all meetings quarterly and the annual meeting, not 
less than five (5) days prior to said meetings and such notice shall state the day, time, place and 
general purpose of such meeting.    Notices for special meetings, as described in Section 3 shall 
be e-mailed, mailed, or posted not less than three (3) business days prior to said meeting.  In no 
case, shall an agenda, or amended agenda, be e-mailed or posted less than 24 hours in advance 
of said meeting.    
 
Section 5.  QUORUM:  The presence at any meetings (including Standing Committees, unless 
otherwise noted) of a majority (defined as >=50%) of the current Commission members, which 
majority shall also include representation from a majority (defined as >=50%) of the member 
Counties assigned to the Committee, shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum for 
the transaction of any business and the election of officers.  All matters relating to business shall 
require an affirmative vote of a simple majority of those members attending a legal meeting 
(when a quorum is present), unless otherwise noted as a 2/3 vote requirement.   
  
Section 6.  PUBLIC MEETINGS:  Member County Planning/Zoning Directors and State 
Legislative Representatives from the region (unless already a member of the Commission), and 
the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation, the Department of Natural Resources and 
other agencies, as may be determined from time to time, shall be notified of all meetings 
pursuant to Article III, Section 4. Meeting notices shall be e-mailed or mailed to local media, 
posted on ECWRPC premises, and posted to the Commission’s website, www.ecwrpc.org for 
public viewing. 
 
 ARTICLE IV - COMPOSITION OF COMMISSION  
 
Section 1.  GENERAL:  Adhering to the principle of representation based on population, the 
membership of the Commission shall be created pursuant to the provisions of § 66.0309 (3) (b) 
of the Wisconsin Statutes, as amended, determined and allocated among participating counties 
as follows:  

http://www.ecwrpc.org/


Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 5 

 
 A. The Chairperson and the County Executive from each member county within the 

Commission. If a member county is organized without a County Executive, the 
County Chairperson shall appoint a member of the County Board to serve as the 
second elected official from that county.Two elected officials from each member 
county which comprises the Commission.  

 
 B. One person, who may be an elected official from each participating county, 

selected by the Governor.  
  
 CB. One elected official from the largest city, if the member County has a population of 

50,000 or more as defined by the U.S. Decennial Census. If the member County 
does not have a population of 50,000 or more per the U.S. Decennial Census, the 
member County may appoint a County Supervisor to the Commission Board.  No 
additional representation hereunder shall be granted for any fractional part of the 
required population unit.One elected official from the largest city, or if no city the 
largest village, within each member county, appointed by the mayor, council 
president, or village president, depending on the specific form of government. 

 
C.  In addition to the representation specified in subsections A. and B., above, Counties 

with a population greater than 50,000 based on the U.S. Decennial Census are 
entitled to one additional member to the Commission Board for each full unit of 
50,000 population that exceeds the 50,000 base number described in subsection B., 
above.  (For purposes of illustration only, a County with a population of 180,000 
would be entitled to 2 additional members to the Commission Board under this 
subsection C.) 

 
D. One ex-officio representative of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation 

(WisDOT) may participate on transportation issues, subjects of concern and interest 
to their geographic areas, or due to noted/recognized expertise.  This member must 
be appointed by WisDOT. 

 
 ED.    One ex-officio representative of a public agency that administers or operates 

major modes of transportation in the Fox Valley metropolitan planning organization 
area, including representation by providers of public transportation. [Note: This 
position will be held by the Transit Manager for Valley Transit]. 

 
 
Section 2. SELECTION OF MEMBERSHIP:  The Commission membership as set forth 
in the preceding Section 1 of this Article shall consist of members to include the following:  
 

A. The Chairman of the County Board of each participating County and the County 
Executive, if any, of each participating County shall be members of said 
Commission.  

 
B. One member from each participating County shall be appointed by the Governor 

from a list of two (2) or more persons nominated by the respective County Boards, 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 6 

of which at least one (1) shall be a private citizens.  In nominating private citizens, 
the County Board shall give preference to those persons having experience in 
multi-jurisdictional efforts in one or more of the following areas:  land use 
planning, transportation, law, finance, engineering, recreation and natural 
resources development, social or economic planning.   The Commission shall 
reimburse the member Counties for any costs incurred in seeking/fulfilling this 
position. 

 
C. The remaining elected officials comprising the representation allocated to each 

participating County under Section 1, Paragraph A, shall be appointed by the 
Chairman of the County Board or by the County Executive as the Wis. Stats. so 
require or provide and subject to confirmation by the County Board [Note: see 

determination by Outagamie County Corporation Counsel in letter dated April 27, 2012].   

In those counties having additional representation as specified in Section 1, 
Paragraph C, the first such representation shall be the mayor, or council president 
in cities with a council manager plan, of the largest city in the County.  All 
additional representatives shall be either county supervisors, city mayors, aldermen 
or councilmen, village presidents or board members, town board chairman or town 
board supervisors residing within the respective County.  

 

D. One ex-officio representative of the Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
(WisDOT) may participate on transportation issues, subjects of concern and 
interest to their geographic areas, or due to noted/recognized expertise.  This 
member must be appointed by WisDOT. 

 
E. One ex-officio representative of a public agency that administers or operates major 

modes of transportation in the Fox Valley metropolitan planning organization area, 
including representation by providers of public transportation. [Note: This position will 
be held by the Transit Manager for Valley Transit]. 

 
Section 32.  TERM OF OFFICE:  Those Commissioners who are appointed by the County 
Board Chairman or the County Executive shall serve for a term of two (2) years, or until they 
cease to hold their public office, whichever comes first.  Those Commissioners appointed by the 
Governor shall serve for a four (4) year term.   Voting, ex-officio members as described in 
Section 2.D., shall serve continuously at the pleasure of the appointing body. 
  
Section 43.  COMMISSION ALTERNATES:  Any member of the Commission selected 
pursuant to Section 21, Paragraphs A or C of this aArticle may designate, in writing and with 
the concurrence of the Commission, a permanent designee. representative as an alternate 
provided the representative meets the provisions of Section 2, Paragraph C of this article.  
Alternatively, for members serving under the provisions of Section 1., Paragraph C of this article 
as the first additional representative in counties having a population greater than 50,000, and 
then only when representing cities with council-manager forms of municipal government, the 
current city manager may be designated as a permanent alternate by action of the member 
with concurrence by resolution of the council of said community.  Such alternate representative 
may attend all meetings of the Commission or its committees and exercise all voting powers of 
the member, except when the member is present.  Any member of the Commission may 
designate, in writing, a temporary alternate for any meeting of the Commission or its 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 7 

committees, except that an alternate may not be designated for more than two Commission 
meetings in succession. Temporary alternate representatives may attend all meetings of the 
Commission or its committees and exercise all voting powers of the member, except when the 
member is present. 
 
Section 54.  RESIGNATION:  Any Commissioner selected pursuant to Section 2, Paragraph C 
of this article who resigns his or her Commission membership or his or her elective office shall 
submit his or her resignation effective as of his the last day in office, and thereafter the vacancy 
shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term by the County Board Chairperson (if a 
county) or the city council or village board. only, pursuant to Section 2, Paragraph C of this 
article.  Any Commissioner selected pursuant to Section 2, Paragraph B of this article who 
resigns shall submit his resignation to the Governor with a copy to the County Board Chairman 
or County Executive, and thereafter the vacancy shall be refilled pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 2, Paragraph B and Section 3 of this article.   
 
 
 ARTICLE V - OFFICERS  
  
Section 1.  NUMBER:  The officers of the Commission shall be comprised of a Chairperson, 
Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary-Treasurer, subject to the express condition that the offices of 
Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall never be concurrently held by Commissioners from the 
same County.  
  
Section 2.  ELECTION:  The offices of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of the Commission 
shall be selected by ballot as the last order of business at the April quarterly meeting of the 
Commission, to take office effective as of said date, and they shall hold their terms of office for 
a period of two years or until their successors have been duly elected and qualified.  The 
Chairperson shall appoint a Nominating Committee for the purpose of nominating Commission 
members for election as officers, and the Chairperson shall advise the Commission of his or her 
selection of such a Nominating Committee at the January meeting.  
 
Section 3.  REMOVAL:  Any of the officers may be removed for cause and may be removed if 
incapacitated or unable to attend meetings and perform the duties of his office.  Removal from 
office shall require a two-thirds (2/3rds) vote of the Commissioners present, voting at a legal 
meeting.  
 
Section 4.  VACANCIES:  Should any office become vacant for any cause, the Commission 
shall select a successor from among the Commission members who will serve until the next 
April quarterly meeting of the Commission when the regular elections are held.  
 
Section 5.  CHAIRPERSON:  The Chairperson of the Commission shall preside, and may vote, 
at all meetings of the Commission.  He or she may present to the Commission such matters as, 
in his or her judgment, require attention, and he or she shall perform such other duties as are 
entrusted to the Chairperson by statute or by these By-laws.  Subject to any contrary 
requirements in these By-laws, the Chairperson shall be guided by Robert's Rules of Order in 
the conduct of meetings.  In no event shall any one member serve as Chairperson for more 
than three consecutive terms.    The Chairperson may also act on behalf of the Steering 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 8 

Committee and/or full Commission in the rare instances that a timely commitment of County 
levy funds is required in order to take advantage of state or federal grant funding opportunities.   
In such cases, the Chairperson’s may approve such commitments for an amount equal to or 
less than $50,000.  In all cases, when such action is used, the item shall be placed on the next 
available Steering Committee agenda for review and follow up action by the Steering Committee 
as a whole. The Commission Chairperson will be compensated an additional annual net stipend 
of $1,000 beginning in 2020, with the first payment to be made in March, 2021 and then 
annually thereafter. 
 
Section 6.  VICE-CHAIRPERSON:  The Vice-Chairperson shall preside in the absence of the 
Chairperson or in the event that the Chairperson is incapacitated or unable to serve, and in the 
absence or disability of the Chairperson, his or her duties shall be performed by the Vice-
Chairperson.  
 
Section 7.  SECRETARY-TREASURER:  The Executive Director of the Commission shall be 
designated as the Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission and shall keep and distribute minutes 
of all meetings of the Commission and shall counter-sign all documents as required to be 
executed, and shall keep and preserve all resolutions, transactions, findings and determinations 
of the Commission.  In the absence of the Secretary-Treasurer, the Chairperson may name a 
Deputy Secretary-Treasurer who shall perform the duties of the Secretary-Treasurer at that 
meeting, or until the office shall have been filled as heretofore provided.  The Secretary-
Treasurer of the Commission shall keep all the funds of the Commission except those funds 
held by governmental agencies in trust for the Commission, and shall deposit them in a 
depository authorized by the Commission, and shall keep an accurate record of all receipts and 
disbursements.  He or she shall be required to supply a bond in the amount of Fifty-Thousand 
Dollars ($50,000), the premium for which shall be paid out of the Commission's funds, and he 
or she shall make all the disbursements under the direction of the Commission.  
 
Section 8.  ADDITIONAL OFFICERS:  The Commission, at an annual, special or quarterly 
meeting, may create such additional officers as it may deem in its judgment advisable and 
prescribe their duties.  
 
 
 ARTICLE VI - MANAGEMENT  
 
Section 1.  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:  The Executive Committee shall be comprised of the 
entire Commission membership as set forth in Article IV.  
 
 
Section 2. STANDING COMMITTEES: Appointments to standing committees shall be made 
by the Chairperson at its Annual Meeting based on recommendations of the Nominating 
Committee.  Such appointments shall not include designation of the committee chairperson and 
vice-chairperson as such positions are nominated and elected by the Committees themselves. 
 

There shall be Standing Committees and sub-committees including but not limited to the 
following:  

 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 9 

 A. Steering Committee: The Steering Committee shall be composed of at least eight 
(8) members who serve as their respective county board chair or their designee. The 
Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson positions for the Committee can, but is not 
required to be, the same as the current Commission Chairperson and Vice-
Chairperson positions.  The Secretary-Treasurer of the Commission shall be the 
secretary of the Steering Committee and shall attend all meetings of the Committee, 
keep a record of the proceedings and perform such other duties as may be 
designated to him or her by the Committee.  The Secretary-Treasurer shall be an ex-
officio member of this Committee without voting privileges.  The duties of the 
Committee shall include:  

 
1. Ensure proper coordination and cooperation among the planning committees of 

the Commission and their respective citizens' or technical advisory committees.  
 
  2. Act in emergency situations with the full power and authority of the Commission 

taking appropriate action until action is taken at the next Commission meeting, 
subject only to the limitation of $50,000 for any expenditure resulting from such 
action.   Refer also to Article V, Section 5 regarding additional Chairperson authorities 
for the timely approval of County levy commitments for state and federal funding 
opportunities. , and the Commission’s Financial Procedures Manual for authorities of 
the Executive Director. 

 
  3. Keep the Commission advised of pending legislation affecting the Commission, its 

policies and its programs.  
 
  4. Prepare and submit at the quarterly July meeting a preliminary budget and work 

program for the purposes of establishing the levy.  
  
  5. Recommend entering into contracts with member governmental units for the 

provision of staff planning services.  
 

6. Recommend the employment of auditors to audit the books of the Commission.  
 

  7. Direct the payment of any bills, claims or expenses incurred on behalf of and 
approved by the Commission.  

 
  8. Recommend the appointment of employees necessary to administer and carry 

out the functions of the Commission.  
 
  9. Recommend the salaries and wages of all employees of the Commission.  
 

10. Recommend a per diem compensation, mileage and other expenses to be paid 
members of the Commission.  

 
11. Direct and monitor the current planning, information system and administration, 

and overhead program elements.   
 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 10 

 B. Planning Committees: The composition of the various planning committees shall 
be determined by the Steering Committee.  The general functions of the committees 
include:  

 
  1. Elect a Committee Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson as their first order of 

business at the first regular Committee meeting following the Annual Meeting.  
The Steering Committee Chairperson and Vice Chairperson shall generally be the 
same as the current Commission Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson, but it is not 
required. 

 
  2.  Provide orientation information for new Planning Committee members at the first 

meeting following the Annual Meeting. 
 
  3.  Prepare the annual work program statement of activities for their respective 

program element(s).  
 

  4. Review detailed study designs for major work elements.  
 
  5. Monitor progress on work activities, review staff drafts of analytical reports and 

alternative plan and program proposals.  
 
  6. Report, advise and recommend on activities for their respective program 

element(s) including their responsibilities for elements of the regional 
comprehensive plan to the full Commission for action.  

 
7.  Review specific project proposals for conformance with adopted plans and policies.  
 

8.  Coordinate activities with those of other committees when necessary and desirable.  
 

9.   Maintain liaison with appropriate citizen and technical advisory committees. 
 
 The specific duties of the Planning committees are as follows:  

 
(a) Regional Comprehensive Planning Committee: This committee directs and 

monitors the regional comprehensive plan and oversees other matters of 
regional impact.   

 
(b)  Economic Development Committee: This Committee directs and monitors 

the economic development and housing program element and maintains 
liaison with respective technical advisory committees, including the 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) Committee.   The 
CEDS Committee composition and operational structure is managed 
through the guidelines adopted by the Commission in Resolution No. 29-09.  

 
(c) Transportation Committee: This committee directs and monitors the 

transportation program element in accordance with state and federal 
regulations. Maintains liaison with the Transportation Policy Advisory 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 11 

Committees and the Transportation Technical Advisory Committee.   
 
 (d) Open Space and Environmental Management Committee - This committee 

directs and monitors the open space and environmental management 
program element.   

 
 (e) Community Facilities Committee – This committee directs and monitors the 

community facilities program element.  The committee has responsibility to 
act on-behalf of the Commission for sewer service area amendments and 
reviews.   

 
Section 3.  SPECIAL PROJECT COMMITTEES:  The Commission may from time to time 
create special project committees from the Commission membership to perform under 
delegated authority of the Commission.  
  
Section 4.  ADVISORY COMMITTEES:  The Commission shall seek the advice and 
cooperation of interested citizens, public officials and agency administrators.  Citizen and 
Technical Advisory Committees shall be established as the Commission shall deem necessary to 
effectively carry out the purposes of the organization.  The membership of the Citizen and 
Technical Advisory Committees shall be established in such manner as determined by the 
Commission.  
 
Section 5.  NOMINATING COMMITTEE:  The Nominating Committee shall consist of one 
Commissioner from each County appointed by the Chairperson and approved by the 
Commission at their January meeting, provided that no officer may serve on the Committee.    
The nominating Committee shall review the results of an internal survey of Commissioners  
(developed and sent out by staff) as part of their deliberations on Committee assignments.  The 
Committee may, at its discretion, develop and institute a standard rotation schedule of 
Committee assignments based on agreed upon criteria. 
 
Section 6.  STAFF:  The Commission may conduct its operations through a permanent staff 
hired in a manner that the Steering Committee may determine, or through retention of 
part-time professional, technical and clerical employees, through consultants or through other 
personnel that it may deem qualified to assist in its business.  The Commission may delegate to 
the staff and to those persons hired by it those functions that the Commission may determine, 
but the said Commission will remain solely responsible in all matters.  
 
Section 7.  DEPOSITORY:  The Commission shall determine a depository for the funds of the 
Commission and direct the Secretary-Treasurer therein to deposit the funds in such designated 
depository in such manner so the deposits will not be made inconsistent with Wisconsin Law 
and which may be subject to review by the Commission as a body.  The terms and conditions of 
the agreements between the depository and the Commission shall be incorporated as a part of 
the By-laws of the Commission.  
 
Section 8.  MEETING PAYMENTS AND EXPENSES:  A payment for meetings, mileage, and 
other expenses shall be paid to Commissioners by the Commission.  All members shall be 
reimbursed for actual expenses incurred as members of the Commission in attending meetings 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 12 

and in carrying out the work of the Commission.  
  
 
 ARTICLE VII - CONTRACTS AND EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS,  
 CHECKS AND DRAFTS  
  
Section 1.  CONTRACTS:  The Commission may enter into such contracts which are 
necessary to carry out the purposes and duties of the Commission and which are not 
inconsistent with the provisions of the Wisconsin law.  The Commission may apply, contract for, 
receive, and expend for its purposes, any funds, grants, gifts or donations from any local 
governmental unit, the State of Wisconsin, the Federal Government or any other source.   
 
Section 2.  EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS:  When the execution of any contract, 
conveyance or other instrument has been authorized without specification of the executing 
officers, the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, and the Secretary-Treasurer may execute the 
same in the name and behalf of the Commission per the limits expressed in the Financial 
Procedures Manual.  The Commission shall have the power to designate the officers and agents 
who shall have authority to execute any instrument in behalf of the Commission.  
 
Section 3.  CHECKS AND DRAFTS:  The Commission may authorize and direct the Secretary-
Treasurer to issue such checks, drafts and vouchers as it may deem necessary for the payment 
of bills and expenses incurred for and on behalf of the Commission.  All disbursements made by 
check drawn on the Commission's depository bank shall be signed by the Secretary-Treasurer. 
In the Secretary-Treasurer’s absence, the Assistant Director may sign checks, drafts, and 
vouchers.  To facilitate prompt payment of small bills and expenses, there is established a petty 
cash fund of $100.  This petty cash fund is authorized to be placed in the custody of the 
Secretary-Treasurer, or their designee, who may make payment of claims up to $100.  
  

 
ARTICLE VIII - FISCAL YEAR 

 
Section 1.  The fiscal year of the Commission shall be the calendar year. 
 
 
 ARTICLE IX - SEAL  
 
Section 1.  The Commission shall procure an official seal which shall contain the following 
legend:  "EAST CENTRAL WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION."  
 
 
 ARTICLE X - AMENDMENTS 
 
Section 1.  Except as described in Section 2, below, these By-laws may be amended at any 
quarterly meeting of the Commission.  The Secretary-Treasurer shall be sent out to each 
member of the Commission a copy of the proposed amendment or amendments to the By-laws.  
This shall be done not less than five (5) days prior to the date of the meeting at which they will 
be considered.  Amendment of these By-laws shall require a majority vote of the Commissioners 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 13 

present, voting at a legal meeting (when a quorum is present).  
 
Section 2.  Article IV, Section 1 hereof shall be amended only in accordance with resolutions 
approved by the governing bodies of a majority of local units within the Commission, and these 
units shall have in the aggregate at least half of the population of the region.  
 
 
 ARTICLE XI - COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE OF WISCONSIN LAW  
  
Section 1.  INCONSISTENCIES:  In the event that these By-laws, or any provisions herein 
contained, should in any manner be contrary to or violate of the provisions of Federal or State 
of Wisconsin Law, the provisions of the Federal or State of Wisconsin Law shall prevail.  
 

 
ARTICLE XII – METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION FUNCTION & 

RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Section 1: PURPOSE:   To implement Federal and State level transportation planning 
requirements as the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Fox Cities 
and Oshkosh Metropolitan Planning Areas (MPAs).   
 
Section 2.   OFFICIAL DESIGNATION:  The East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning 
Commission (Commission) through cooperative partnership agreements with the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(MPO) for the Appleton (Fox Cities) Transportation Management Area (TMA) and the Oshkosh 
Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA).  
 
Section 3: URBANIZED AREA BOUNDARY & METROPOLITAN PLANNING AREA:  Per 
the 2010 Decennial Census, the Appleton (Fox Cities) and Oshkosh Urbanized Areas and 
Metropolitan Planning Areas (MPAs) includes portions of Calumet, Outagamie and Winnebago 
Counties. 
 
Section 4: MPO POLICY BOARD:  The Appleton(Fox Cities) and Oshkosh Metropolitan 
Planning Organizations (MPOs) are governed by a single MPO Policy Board containing the same 
representation of elected and appointed representatives as those of the Commission.  All 
functions, responsibilities, and authorities conveyed in these Bylaws, as they pertain to the 
Commission, are conferred to the MPO Policy Board when exercising such authority on 
transportation related policy matters or decisions. 
 
Section 5:  MPO STAFF:  MPO staff is responsible for carrying out the federal transportation 
planning process in conjunction with its partners. The Commission is the hosting body for the 
MPO staff. As such, MPO staff are Commission employees. 
 
Section 6:  RESPONSIBILTIES MPO POLICY BOARD: In addition all other Bylaw 
responsibilities afforded to the Commission, the MPO Policy Board is the body that reviews and 
approves all transportation related activities of the MPO. This includes being a forum for 



Bylaws of the East Central Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission Approved – July 26, 2019___________, 2021 

{07631210.DOCX.1}  

 

 

 14 

cooperative decision-making with the following responsibilities: 
 

A. Approve goals and objectives of the transportation planning process; 
B. Review and approval the Long Range Transportation Plans (LRTPs) and its updates or 

revisions; 
C. Review and adopt changes in transportation planning concepts; 
D. Review and approve the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP); 
E. Review and adopt the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) including project 

priorities and approve any changes in the priority schedule; 
F. Ensure the efficient and effective use of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 

Section 112 and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5303 planning funds; 
G. Serve as liaison representatives between various governmental units in the study area to 

obtain optimum cooperation of all governmental units in implementing various elements 
of the plan; 

H. Ensure citizen participation and transparency within the transportation planning process 
through proactive policies and procedures. 

 
Section 7:  MPO SUBCOMMITTEES & INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS: The MPO Policy Board 
shall have the authority to form temporary (or permanent) subcommittees to conduct the 
following activities in order to carry out MPO Policy Board functions: 
 

A. To negotiate the terms of possible funding agreements with member agencies; 
B. To investigate how MPO functions might be improved; 
C. To evaluate the MPO Director’s performance and make recommendations; 
D. To conduct research and/or fact-finding regarding MPO plans, policies or operations. 
  

All findings, recommendations and/or proposals submitted by MPO subcommittees shall not be 
binding, but are subject to review and final approval of the MPO Policy Board. 
    
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
These By-laws were adopted by the Commission on the 27th day of September, 1972, as further 
amended on the 8th day of February, 1973, the 11th day of March, 1976, the 13th day of May, 1976, the 

8th day of May, 1980, the 14th day of May, 1981, the 13th day of May, 1982, the 25th day of April, 1985, 
the 28th day of April, 1988, the 26th day of April, 1990, 30th day of April, the 28th day of April, 1995 the 

23rd day of May, 2001, the 26th day of April, 2002, the 27th day of April, 2006, the 25th day of April, 2008, 

the 29th day of April, 2011, the 26th day of October, 2013, the 25th day of April, 2014, the 25th day of July, 
2014, the 30th day of January, 2015, the 26th day of July, 2019, and the ____ day of _________, 2021. 



 

 

 

 

 

 
TO: Community and Economic Development Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: February 9, 2022 

RE: Execute Option to Purchase – Lot 3 Northeast Industrial Park Plat #4, 
Valley Tool, Inc. or its assigns 

 

 

The City of Appleton sold Lots 1 & 2 of Northeast Industrial Park Plat Number 4 to Valley 
Tool, Inc. on August 28, 2019.  The City also entered into an Option to Purchase for Lot 3 
of Northeast Industrial Park Plat Number 4 (attached) with Valley Tool, Inc. as approved by 
Council on July 10, 2019. 

Valley Tool, Inc. has constructed an approximately 34,000 sq. ft. facility since originally 
closing on Lots 1 & 2.  We have received written notice that Valley Tool, Inc. would like to 
exercise their option to purchase Lot 3 under the terms of our agreement dated August 22, 
2019.  Additionally, Valley Tool, Inc. would like to assign their rights to assign this contract 
to Tetz, LLC. 
 
Per terms of the option, the purchase price shall be $53,850.00 which is $37,395.83 per 
acre for this 1.44 acre parcel.  There are no real estate commissions requested for this 
transaction. 
 

Staff Recommendation:  
 

The City of Appleton proceed with the sale of Lot 3 of Northeast Industrial Park Plat 
Number 4 to Tetz, LLC per the terms of the Option to Purchase Agreement dated August 
22, 2019 BE APPROVED. 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 





OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:1 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:2 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:3 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:4 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:5 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:6 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:7 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:8 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:9 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



OUTAGAMIE, WI  Document:OPT 2170252 Page:10 of 10
Printed on:9/17/2019 8:31 AM

Branch :F4G    User :RMIL



 

 

 

 

 

 
TO: Community and Economic Development Committee  
  
FROM: Karen Harkness, Director of Community & Economic Development  
 Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: February 9, 2022 

RE: Development Agreement Amendment Request – 513 W. College Avenue 
Bela Development LLC 

 
 
The City of Appleton entered into a Development Agreement with Bela Development, LLC 
on December 23, 2019 to support the redevelopment of the property at 513 W. College 
Avenue.   
 
Per Article IV “Conditions to Payment; Termination of Agreement”, the Developer is 
obliged to create a minimum assessed value of $1,700,000 by January 1, 2022.  The City 
Assessor has established the value as of January 1, 2022 to be $1,141,000 which falls 
below the minimum value stated in the Development Agreement. 
 
Developer has experienced construction and supply chain disruptions resulting in their 
anticipated inability to meet the assessed value requirements stated above.  In light of that, 
Developer has requested an additional 12 months, one time extension, to meet the 
minimum assessed value of $1,700,000 (January 1, 2023). 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
The Development Agreement with Bela Development, LLC be amended to provide 
Developer until January 1, 2023 to meet the minimum $1,700,000 assessed value 
requirement  BE APPROVED.   
 
 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

































 

 

 

 

 

 
TO: Community and Economic Development Committee 
  
FROM: Matt Rehbein, Economic Development Specialist 
 
DATE: February 9, 2022 

RE: Offer to Purchase – Lot 11 Southpoint Commerce Park Plat #1, 
Farrell Investments, LLC 

 
 
The City of Appleton has received an Offer to Purchase from Farrell Investments, LLC for 
Lot 11 of Southpoint Commerce Park Plat Number 1, comprised of approximately 3.25 
acres.    
 
The proposed purchase price is $130,000 which is based on our asking price of $40,000 
per acre. 
 
Farrell Investments, LLC owns the adjacent parcel to the east and would like to expand 
their building. 

 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
The City of Appleton accept the Offer-To-Purchase for Lot 11 of Southpoint Commerce 
Park Plat No. 1, comprised of approximately 3.25 acres, from Farrell Investments, LLC at a 
purchase price of $130,000 ($40,000.00 per acre) BE APPROVED.   

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



























andershm
Text Box
Exhibit B Deed Restrictions

























Calumet Street (County Highway KK)

Sta
te H

igh
way 

441

Midway Road

Milis Drive

Qu
es

t D
riv

e

La
ke

lan
d D

riv
e

Eis
en

ho
we

r D
riv

e Co
op

 R
oa

d

Eis
en

ho
we

r D
riv

e

De
sti

na
tio

n D
riv

e (
Pr

iva
te)

Retail
CenterOffice

Park
26

05
26

25

All
ian

ce
 D

riv
e

Vantage Drive

Endeavor Drive 3920

Plank Road

Plank Road

Custom
OffsetsSecurity

Luebke

Farrell
Equiptment

FLAIR

9-5712-40
CSM 3549 Lot 1

7.22 acres
$40,000/acre

9-5712-34
Lot 34

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-39
3.64 acres

$40,000/acre

Accepted Offer
30 Acres

NMCR

F Street 
Development

Custom
Offsets

9-5712-11
Lot 11

SCP Plat No. 1
3.25 acres

$40,000/acre

Veritiv

9-5712-25
Lot 25

SCP Plat No. 2
4.88 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-15
Lot 15

SCP Plat No. 2
4.83 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-18
Lot 18

SCP Plat No. 2
4.07 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-6
Lot 6

SCP Plat No. 1
3.01 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-24
Lot 24

SCP Plat No. 2
2.88 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-21
Lot 21

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-22
Lot 22

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-23
Lot 23

SCP Plat No. 2
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-36
Lot 36

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre
9-5712-35

Lot 35
SCP Plat No. 3

2.59 acres
$40,000/acre

9-5712-37
Lot 37

SCP Plat No. 3
2.59 acres

$40,000/acre

9-5712-16
Lot 16

SCP Plat No. 2
3.69 acres

$40,000/acre

Encapsys

9-5712-19
Lot 19

SCP Plat
No. 2

3.46 acres
$40,000/acre

9-5712-14
Lot 14

SCP Plat No. 2
2.16 acres

$40,000 per acre

9-5712-5
Lot 5

SCP Plat No. 1
2.32 acres

$40,000/acre

Appleton
Hydraulic

Components

Southpoint Commerce Park
Appleton, Wisconsin

Prepared by City of Appleton
Comm. & Econ. Dev. Dept. 2/2022

0 400 800200
FeetÜ

Legend
City Limits
Park Boundary
Accepted Offer
For Sale (City Owned)
Privately Owned Parcels
Subject Parcel


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CEDC Minutes 1-12-22
	0002_1_Reallocation of 2020 AHA Funds to RTFV Memo to CEDC 2-9-22
	0002_2_AHA Reallocation Request 1-4-22
	0002_3_Amendment to RTFV SubAgreement 1-25-22
	0003_1_CDBG-CV Policy Approval Memo to CEDC 2-9-22
	0003_2_DRAFT CDBG-CV Policy 1-28-22
	0004_1_2022-01_CityofAppletonSupport_ECWRPCResolution
	0004_2_ECWRPC_ResolutionAmendingArticlesofOrg+Bylaws_Packet
	Memo_GovernorAppointments_TownsOutagamieCounty
	ECWRPC_Board Composition_Approved_4_30_2021
	3_11-21 Final - signedreprint
	3 Articles_Approved_04_30_2021_Redlined
	4 ECBylaws_Approved 04_30_2021_RedlineVersion

	0005_1_Valley Tool Exercise Option to Purchase Memo to CEDC 2-9-22
	0005_2_Request from Valley Tool_Exercise Option to Purchase_Lot 3 NEIP
	0005_3_Recorded Option to Purchase_COA and Valley Tool_Lot 3 NEIP
	0007_1_Bela DA Extension Memo to CEDC 2-9-22
	0007_2_Bela Development 513 W College Recorded Dev Agrmt
	0008_1_Farrell Expansion Offer to Purchase Memo to CEDC 2-9-22
	0008_2_Farrell Offer to Purchase 2-3-22
	0008_3_SPCP Deed Restrictions
	0008_4_Southpoint Commerce Park Map_Feb 2022


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




